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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
GOVERNORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees'
~ feport, and a directors' report under company law. .

- The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and
comply with the charitable company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2006, the
Statement of Recommended Practice 2015, "Accounting and Reponmg by Charities”, and the Academies’ Accounts

Direction 2019/20 issued by the ESFA . '

The principal activity of the company is the operatron ofa state-funded Academy, Blackfen School for Girls,
providing a state education for students aged 11 to 19..It-has a student capacity of 1500 and had a roll of 1368 in
the school census on January 2020. This is srmrlar to previous years. : .

Structure, governance and management
Constitution

The academy trust was incorporated ae a company on 02 March 2012 and the predecessor school converted to
academy status on 01 April 2012. The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The

charitable company's memorandum and articles of assocratron are the primary governing documents of the - ‘
academy trust

-The governors of Blackfen School for Girls are also the trustees and directors of the charitable company for the
.purposes of company law and they are governors of the Academy. .

The charitable company is known as Blackfen School for Girls.

Details of the governors who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on
page 1.

Members' liability -

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be requlred not exceedmg £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
member.

Governors' indemnities

No Governors’ indemnities have been given. e

. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of governors

In accordance with the articles, the governors of the charitable company are the trustees and directors of the
charitable company. They are appointed as follows;

a) up to twelve governors appointed by the members;

b) up to three staff governors elected by the staff;

c) up to five parent governors elected by parents;

d) one LA governor appointed by LA,

e) the Head Teacher is an ex-officio governor; )

f) In particular circumstances, as detailed in the Arlicles of Association the Secretary of State may appornt
governors to join the governrng body. .

In respect of those appointed by the members, (a), above) when a vacancy arises, the governors seek to make an
appointment that would maximise the relevant skills and experience on the board as a whole.
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Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of governors ’

The training and induction provided for new governors will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary,
induction will provide training in charity, educational, legal and financial matters. All govemnors are provided with the
information needed (including policies, minutes, budgets, etc.) to undertake their role as governors

Oraanisational structure

-

The board of governors, the majority of whom are non-executive, comprises those persons appointed under the
Articles of Association. The board meets at least four times a year and has four committees which deal with policies,’
developments and assessment of different areas of the running of the Academy. The committees are as follows:

Finance & Audit Committee

Curriculum Committee

Staffing Committee . ‘

Premises Committee ‘ S . .
Pay & Performance Committee '

All of the commitiees are formally constituted with terms of reference and comprise appropriately qualified and
experienced members. Governors delegate specific responsibilities to its committees, the activities of which are
reported to and discussed at full Governing Body.Meetings. The committees. meet each term. All policies and
budget decisions are agreed by the Governing Body. .

The Head Teacher is the Accounting Officer, he is a member of the Finance & Audit, Curriculum, Staffing and
‘Premises committees. The Business Manager is the Principal Finance Officer. -

The day to day management of the Academy is undeﬂaken by the Head Teacher, supported by the" Leadershlp
Team.

' Arrangements for setting y;ay and remuneration of key manégement personnel

The leadership team (LT) are the key management personnel of the trust. Trustees are also senior leaders aithough
they receive no pay or other remuneration in respect of their role as trustees. Where staff trustees are in place, they
receive remuneration for their role as staff and their pay is determined in the same way as applicable to all other
staff. Further details of remuneration paid to staff who are trustees is set out within the notes to the accounts.

The pay of the Head Teacher is set annually by the group responsible for setting the Head Teacher's pay. An
external adviser is used.to evaluate the performance of the Head Teacher and to advise the Governors panel
accordingly.. The final pay decision recommendation is made to the full Governing body for ratification. Pay is set
having regards to performance against objectives set the previous year. Pay of other LT members is also set by the
Pay and Performance Committee again having regard to performance against previously agreed objectlves and any
recommendations made by the Head Teacher..

Trade Union Facility Time

Relevant union officials

~

Number of employees who were relevant union officials | Full-time equivalent employee number
during the relevant period : .

3 : ' 23

Percentage of time spent'on facility time

Percentage of time Number of Employees
0% XX

1% - 50% . 2.71%

51% - 99% : v XX

100% _ , XX




BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS ' -

- GOVERNORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total Cost of facility time . . £1,234
Total Pay bill ' £89,534

Pergentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time 1.38%

Paid trade union activities *

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a : 0.325%
ercentage of total paid facility time hours. e

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Blackfen School for Girls is a single Academy and is not part of a federation.

The Academy formed an Umbrella Trust - The Penhill Academies Trust - with 2 partner schools. These schools
were Sherwood Park (primary school), Hurstmere (boys 7-11 School). Chislehurst and Sidcup Grammar School
(mixed gender 7 -13) and Bexley Grammar School (mixed gender 7 -13) joined later to bring the partner schools to
4. The aim is to promote school improvement across the five schools for all young people in the local community.
The vision is for five schools working .together for the benefit of the local community. A key .aspect of this
Coliaborative working is to share some costs, hence be more efficient, in terms of potential staffing and purchasing
power. The Head Teachers meet formally once a term and the.Penhill Trust Board meets formally once a
term. Minutes from these meetings are discussed at the Blackfen school governing body meetings.

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The principal object of the company is the advancement of education in the United Kingdom. It achieves this object
principally through the operation of Blackfen School for Girls, the aim being to provide the highést possible standard
of education and pastoral care, maximising the life-chances of its students.

‘Ob'iectives, strategies and activities -
The main objectives during the last year were to:

Ensure that effective leadership & management at all levels improves student progress;
Improve the quality of teaching, learning and assessment;

Develop conditions for learning to outstanding;

Raise standards and accelerate progress and

Improve16-19 prowsron

Publlc benefit

In settmg the objectives and planning the associated activities, governors have given careful conSIderatlon to the
Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.
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Strategic report

Achievements and performance

It has been a challenging year for the company with the cancellation of examinations in March. Students have,
instead, been awarded with centre assessed grades for examinations this year. The main focus of the strategic plan
_was to continue to raise attainment for all groups of students but particularly to improve attainment for the higher
prior attaining students and for the disadvantaged. There were a number of enrichment opportunities available to

students throughout the year including our annual Discover days and Challenge days. The company had a

successful Ofsted mspectlon in December 2019,

Due to the pandemic some residential-trips were cancelled. However students still visited India,. New York and

Iceland and many students were successful in the Duke of Edinbufgh award. We staged a Careers Fair, a -

Citizenship Fair and an International evening celebration as well as numerous music, drama and dance
performances.

We have continued to invest in improving the buildings in the school and in improving the IT infrastructure.

The new teachin_g block works began as we aim to replace all temporary teaching blocks.

The school is inclusive with highly trained teachers in the resource provision, specnallsmg in speech and language

dlff culties as well as a speech and language therapist.

Key finaricial performance indicat‘ors

1)-Staffing costs to be within +/- 2% of budget allocations: .
For the period ending 31st August 2020 teaching costs were at 97.85% of budget aIIocatlon and overall ‘staffing
costs were at 97.93% of total budget allocation. The overall employee cost are at 99. 89% of budget and this is due
to unforeseen staff sickness.

Staffing costs are the Academy's main expense and the good value and commitment of our staff are reflected in our

examination results.

2) Learning resources expendlture to be within +/- 5% of budget allocatlon
For the period ending 31st August 2020 learning resources. expenditure was at 80.85% of budget allocation, this is
lower than normal due to COVID-19 reducing the spend on learning resources.

In all of our expenditure the Business Manager, Finance Manager, Governors and Leadershlp Team will obtain the’

best value and will investigate choices and options available.

Other key performance indicators
- Year 11 headline figures

Attamment/Progress 8 Summary

Measure : Total %
Average Total Attainment 8 . 48.36

" Average Attainment 8 Grade . 4.84
‘Average KS2 Prior Attainment e ) 4.78
Average Estimated A8 . . 45.93
Average Total Progress 8 o . 0.32

Pupils Included {Progréss 8 Coverage) ) . 194 94.6
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Positive Progress 8

>

Students Achieving 9-4 in Maths but NOT English

Measure Total %
Pupils achieving a Positive Overall Progress 8 score - 124 63.9
Pupils achieving a ‘Pos'itive Progress 8 score in ALL 4 baskets ‘58 29.9
Pupils achieving a Positive Progress 8 score in English - 117 60.3
Pupils achieving a Positive Progre.ss 8 score in Maths 106 54.6
Pupils achieving a Positive Progress 8 score in EBacc 97' 50
| Pupils achieving a Positive Progress 8 score in Open 155 79.9
Basics 9-7
Measure Total %
Students Achieving 9-7 in English and Maths 17 8.3
Students Achieving 9-7 in English - 40 19.5
Students Achieving 9-7 in Maths 25 12.2
Students NOT Achieving 9-7 in English or Maths 157 76.6
Students Achieving 9-7 in English but NOT Maths 23 11.2
Students Achieving 9-7 in Maths but NOT English 8 39
Basics 9-5 '
Measure Total %
Students Achieving 9-5 in English and Maths 81 39.5
Students Achieving 9-5 in English 139 67.8
Students Achieving 9-5 in Maths 93 45.4
Students NOT Achieving 9-5 in English or Maths 54 26.3
Students Achieving 9-5 in English but NOT Maths 58 28.3
Students Achieving 9-5 In Maths but NOT English 12 5.9
Basics 9-4
Measure Total * | %-
Students Achieving 9-4in English and Maths 152 74.1
Students Achieving 9-4 in English 178 86.8
Students Achieving 9-4 in Maths 155 75.6
Students NOT Achieving 9-4 in English or Maths 24 11.7
Students Achieving 9-4 in English but NOT Maths 26 12.7
3 1.5 |
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-6th Form Headline figures

Measure ' _ » Total | Percent

Cohort 123

A Level Cohort .. , 95

Academic Cohort - < 95

Vocational Cohort _ o ' 73

Applied General Cohort : . 73

Tech Level Cohart ) ' ' 0

Overall : / . : Tdtal B . Percent

“Overall APS Per Pupil ' 104.11 B
'| Overall APS Per Entry. . A . . 34.05

QOverall Avg Grade Per Entry ’ ) . C+

Overall VA ' B -

Overall VA Lower Confidence Limit C -
Overall VA Upper Confidence Limit . -
Students Included in Overall Value Added -
Overall Completion and Attainment : : ' .

Students Included in Overall Completion & Attainment 7 0

Overall Students Retained - . : 122 't 992"
Students Included in Overall Retention . . 123
Overall 1+ A*- B (or equivalent) - ) 75 .81,
Overall 2+ A*- B (or equivalent) -~ . . : 38 ' - 309
-Qverall 3+.A"— B (or eduivalent) - ‘ 18 - 14.6
Overall 1+ A* C (or equivalent) ' 115 93.5
Overall 2+ A*- C (or equivalent) ' 91~ 74
Overall 3+ A*- C (or equivalent) ' : - 54 43.9
Overall 1+ A*- E (or equivalent) - = _ . 123 ] - 100
| Overall 2+ A*- E (or equivalent) : 4 121 . 98.4

- Measure L . . - | Total - Percent

Goaing concern

After making appropriate encﬁunes the board of governors has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the gomg concern basus in preparing the financial statements
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Financial review

We receive our income from a number of different sources. The majority of our income comes from central
government via the Education and Skills Funding Agency who provide us with grant, based largely on our student
numbers to cover our staffing and other general running costs (General Annual Grant - GAG). The ESFA may
provide us with additional: grants, which are earmarked for specific purposes (such as Pupil Premium, which must
be used to raise the attainment of disadvantaged pupils). These appear in the accounts as DfE/ESFA grants. .
Where we receive grant or other funding from the LLocal Authority (such as where we undertake responsibilities on

. their behalf in respect of our students) this appears in the accounts as other government grants. Such income is
collectively referred to as “Restricted Funds”.

Other income is received from parents (for example as contributions to trip or other costs) and from third parlies (for
example from our bank for interest on our account balances or from others who are charged for their use of our
facilities). Such other income may be restricted or unrestricted; depending on whether it comes to us W|th conditions
as to its use or whether itis avallable for spending at the dlscretlon of the trustees.

We hold funds in two broad categories, funds which are available for spendlng and other funds which are not
available for spending.

Spendable funds are in turn sub-categorised between those which are available for spending at the discretion of
. trustees ("Unrestricted Funds”) and those which are subject to condition or restriction, (‘Restricted Funds”).

Funds not available for spending include the book value of fixed assets such as land, buildings and equipment.
These have a value and are therefore included as assets in the accounts but clearly, we cannot spend this value. In
common with all academies and Local Authorities, our share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit must
also be reflected in our accounts and as this is not a conventional liability, it does not need to be deducted from
spendable funds. We meet our obligations in respect of the LGPS by paying over pension contnbutlons due as
calculated by the scheme’s actuaries. The following balances held were held at 31 August:

Fund - Category = - : 2020 2019

' : ' £000 _£°000

GAG o Restricted General Funds ) 138 . 40

Other DfElESFA Grants Restricted General Finds - -

‘Other Income Restricted General Funds 55 46

Sub-total General Restricted Funds . 193 86

Unspent Capital Grants ' Restricted Fixed Asset F:und : 766 . 1,830

Other Income . - Unrestricted General Fund 119 76

Sub-Total Spendable Funds 1,078 1,992

Net Book Value of Fixed Assets Restricted Fixed Aeset Fund . 20,674 ’ 20,103
Salix Energy Loan Restricted Fixed Asset Fund @1 (23)

Share of LGPS Deficit Restricted Pension Reserve (2,938) | ~ (2,886)

Total All Funds M : 19,186

During the year under review, there was a surp|us of £107k (2019: £85k) on general restncted funds, a surplus of
£43k (2019: £76k) on unrestricted funds and after LGPS valuation adjustments, deprecuanon and capital income
and expenditure, an overall (deﬁcnt) of £(483k) (2019: £(44k)).

Reserves Qohcy

The pnnmpal policy on reserves is that accumulation of unspent GAG balances should not breach any limits thereon
set out in the Funding agreement. The level of reserves should never be in deficit.-

'Each year the Governors review the resource requirements and grant and other income that is. forecast for-the
coming year and an annual budget is formulated and approved.

-9-
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Investment policy and powers

There are no investments held beyond cash deposnts retained with the major UK cleanng banks. Speculative
investments are not permitted.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The governors have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to
academic performance/finances/child welfare/admissions. The governors have implemented a number of systems
to assess risks that the Academy faces, and have developed policies and procedures to mitigate those risks. Where
significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The Academy has an
effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the Governance Statement.

The principal financial risk faced by the company is that 6ngoing pressure on funding resuits in a risk that deficits
may be experienced. The budgeting and reporting process, including scrutiny by the governors-of actual financial
performance, mitigates the risk.

As the nature of the financial instruments dealt with by the company is relatively simple (bank balances, debtors and

"trade" creditors), governors consider the associated risk in this area to be minimal.

The risk resulting from the company's share of the LGPS deficit is managed by following the advice of the scheme’s .
- actuaries, specifically as regards the Ievel of contnbuttons payable, ensuring that annual budgets are drawn up to

reﬂect the actuary's advice. )

Most of the company's income is obtained from the DfE (via the Education and Skills Funding Agency) in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the
year ended 31 August 2020 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of
financial activities.

Our fundraising practiees

The trust and individual academies within it organlse ‘fundraising events and appeals and co-ordinate the actiwtles
of our supporters both in the academies and in the wider communlty on behalf of the trust. :

The trust does not use professional fundraisers or involve commercial participators.
There have been no complaints about fundraising activity this year.

The trust compfies with the Fundraising Regulator's Code of Fundraising Practice.

All fundraising is undertaken by the trust in a manner that seeks to ensure that it is not unreasonably intrusive or
persistent. Contact is made through email, academy newsletters, our websites and via students. All fundraising
material contains clear instructions on how a person can be removed from mailing lists. .

Plans for future periods ’

PRIORITY 1: Quality of Education T s DA
2020/21 V|5|on Every teacher aleader of learnlng, every leader ateacherof Iearnlng

Objectives‘ — . - . Actions, mcludmg CPD

Intent 1.1 Curriculum- | Intent 1.1.1
ambition: knowledge, KSB/KS4 Prepare RSE curriculum and review staff ing
skills & cultural

capital . lntent1 1.2 -
KS3/KS4: Review Alternative Provision curriculum and staffing in “Jigsaw' and ‘Phoenix.

Intent 1.1.3 )
KS4/KS5: Review,_curriculum structures and lesson destgn for students with high prior attainment
(HPA). .

Intent 1.1:4
KS5: Explore addltlonal Level 3 courses: Finance / Physics / MFL’

“10-
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Intent 1.1.5
Schemes of Learning 2020 focus: units of work in Year 10 and Year 12.

Intent 1.1.6
Review rationale and management of Challenge Days with regard to PSHCE curriculum -

Intent 1.1.7 '
Introduce PRIDE attitudes and Iearnmg in Year 6/7 transition penod to underpin 'ﬂylng start' as a key
driver of academic success in Year 7.

Intent 1.1.8
Embed DICE programme for KS3 —~ KSS to include cultural capital expenenoes through enjoyment
challenge, resilience and scholarship.

Intent 1.1.9

{ Use IT to design at-a-glance index of prior learning across the curriculum: Stage 1 Construction of

hyperlinked leaming hub

expertise

Intent 1.2 Intent 1.2.4'+ 1.2.2 ’ i
Coherence of Introduce teaching staff to principles of sequential planning in Schemes of Learning and lesson
planning & design.
sequencing ’
i Intent 1.2.3
Continue to make good proLs towards achieving Ga ibx benchmarks
Intent 1.2.4
Pllot a strateglc approach to managing set-moves in Key Stage 3
Intent 1.3 Intent.1.3.1
-Meeting the needs of .
SEND pupils Review Teaching and Learning Strategies in the context of the needs of all our cohort
Intent 1.4 ) Intent 1.4.1 .
Breadth of curriculum | Continue to review KS3 curricutum offer: -
in KS3 & EBacc . :
Intent 1.4.2
Develop a stepped approach towards meeting the DfE EBacc ambition
Intent 1.4.3
- Develop and embed MFL Subject Ieadershrp and Level 3 curriculum.
-Intent 1.6 Intent 1.5.1 .
Teachers’ subject Review whole-school CPD structure & model |n light of curriculum planmng. second-subject teaching
and workload implications.

Intent 1.5.2 + 1.5.3
‘Introduce teaching staff to principles of sequential planning in Schemes of Learnrng and lesson
design. "

Intent 1.5.4
Review new coaching lesson observation model to improve teachlng and learning on a termly basis.

Intent 1.5.5 . .
Develop middle leadership of T&L: Applied and regular use of professional and academic reading by
FL/SL to support Faculg and Subject development. ‘ -

Intent 1.5.6
Research and introduce principles behind review of school-day structures CPD/ Curriculum
lanning / Management of teacher workload. .

Intent 1.5.7
Ensure further subject specific targeted CPD for subject teachers where there is a cause for concern
about examination outcomes

| 1.6 Adaptive teaching
‘(checking for
understanding) .

Intent 1.6.1
Develop strategic plan for delivering professional training on ‘Adaptive teaching’ linked to 2.1.1

=11 -
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1.7 Teaching to
remember long term

Intent 1.7.1
Embed techniques for memorisation of learning:

with fluency 1) Frequent low-stakes testing )
: 2) Frequent 'memarisation’ homework.
1.8 Teaching Intent 1.8.1 ’
environment & Refresh the use of ICT asa learning tool across the curriculum: Assess feasibility of extendmg use of
resources ‘Microsoft Teams' In 2020 2021
1.9 Use of 1.8.1
assessment Review KS3 standards and language of assessment in subject pedagogy.
' , 102 '
. | Review SL consistency in use of KS3 and KS4 assessment data

1.9.3 .

Review AHT consistency in use of KS3 and KS4 assessment data =

Intent 1.9.4

Subject standardisation of student assessed work across Year 10 and Year 12 work.

1 1.10 Reading Intent 1.10.1 '
. Revcew use of accelerated reader across years 7 and 8
Intent 1.10.2

Review interventions currently in place for students workmg belaw reading age and map these using
provision mapper. Where there are gaps m this prows:on consider appropriate strategies to
encourage reading.

Intent 1.10.3
Create a culture of reading for pleasure across the school

Intent 1.10.4
Provide targeted vocabulary
instruction in every subject

1.11 Teachers’ own
speaking, listening &
writing

1 Intent 1.11.1

Plan TLC on selected aspect(s) of Professional hteracy

Actions,

bbjectlves Hclu ing CPD
Intent 2.1 Intent 2.1.1
Expectations for KS3/KS4: a calm and orderly environment in the school and the classroom, as this is essentlal for

behaviour & conduct

students to be able to learn

Intent 2.1.2
KS3/KS4: the setting of clear routmes and expectat(ons for the behaviour of students across all
aspects of school life, not just in the classroom

Intent 2.1.3 '
KS3/KS4: a strong focus on attendance and punctuality so that disruption is minimised

Intent 2.1.4
KS3/KS4: clear and effective behaviour and attendance policies with clearly defined consequences
that are applied consistently and fairly by all staff.

12
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Intent 2.1.5 *

- KS3/KS4: students' motivation and positive attitudes to Iearnmg as |mportant predictors of
attainment; the development of posmve attitudes can also have a longer-term impact on how
students approach learning tasks in later stages of education

Intent 2.1.6 :
KS3/KS4: A posmve and respectfu| school cuiture in which staff know and care about students

Intent.2.1.7 eyaluating the school's analysis of, and response to, students' behaviour over time.

Intent 2.2
Environment (incl
dealing with bullying
& discrimination)

Intent 2.2.1

an environment in which students feel safe, and in which bullying, discrimination and peer-on-peer
abuse — online or offline- are not accepted and are dealt with quickly, consistently and effectlvely
whenever they oceur.

Intent 2.2.2 .
observing students at break times, lunchtimes, between lessons and, if they are Ied and managed by
the school, before- and after-school clubs

Students’ attitudes to

their education

Intent 2.3 Intent 2.3.1
Improving beh & att of .
students with

particular needs

Intent 2.4 Intent 2.4.1

observing students’ behavnour in'a range of different classes at different times of the day

Intent 2.5 Attendance
& punctuality

Intent 2.5.1
observmg students’ punctuality i in arriving at school and at lessons -

Intent 252
analysing absence and persistent absence rates for all students, and for different groups compared

. with national averages for all students; this includes the extent to which low attenders aré improving

their attendance over time and whether attendance is consistently low

Intent 2.6
Use of exclusions

Intent 2.6.1 i
evaluating the effectiveness of fixed-term and mtemal excluscons lncludmg the rates and reasons for
exclusion

ntent26.2

gathering evidence about the typical behaviour of students who are not in school during the
inspection, for example whether they have had fixed-term or internal exclusions in the two years
before inspection

Intent 2.6.3
evaluating the prevalence of permanent exclusion, the procedures surrounding thls and the reasons
forit, and the support given to make sure that it is a fast resort

Intent 2.6. 4
assessing the school s work to follow up and support fixed-term excluded students

Intent 2.6.5
visiting any off-site unit that the school runs (on its own or in partnershlp with other schools) for
students whose behaviour is poor or who have low attendance.

Intent 2.7
Relationships among
students and staff,
incl. feeling safe

Intent 2.7.1
observing students’ respect for, and courtesy and good manners towards, each other and adults,
and their pride in themselves and their school
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development

, ]ecvs cto, mcludmgCPD
. i
. intent 3.1.1 '
Intent 3.1
Character Students-investigate moral and ethlcal issues .

The School Behaviour Charter statement of intent and the use of sanctlons combmed with the use of
the peer mentoring and mediation program encourages students to reflect cntrcally on their actions
and offer support to students. .

Intent 3.2,
pastoral support

Intent 3.2.1.
Students to be aware of student welfare and thelr support officers
CRIBs, Mental Health Ambassadors, school counsellor and school nurse servlce

Intent 3.4

Preparing students -
for life in modern _
Britain

Intent 3.4.1
Understanding and appreciation of the range of different cultures in the school and further afield as
an essential elemenit of thelr preparation for life in modern Britain

Respect for difference

) Intent 3.5.1 : ’ :
intent 3.5 ‘Understanding and apprecratron of the wrde range of cultural influences that have shaped therr own
Equality of heritage and that of others

‘opportunity & .
diversity
Intent 3.6.1 i ‘
+Acceptance of.and engagement with the fundamental British values of democracy, the rule of law,
individual liberty and mutual respect and tolerance of those with different faiths and beliefs. They will
Intent 3.6 develop and demonstrate skills and attitudes that will allow them to participate fully in and contnbute

positively to life in modern Britain
Use of a range of social skills in different contexts, for example working and socialising with other
'students including those from dlfferent rellglous ethnlc and socio-économic backgrounds o

-

Intent 3.7

Developing

responsible,

respectful, active -
_cltizens

Tintent 3.7.4 - ‘ ;
Students galn a sense of social responsibility and respect for members of the communlty

Ohjectlves

Atlons,'including CPD

4.1 To ensure that
leaders' ‘and governors
_have high expectations
of all students in the
"school, and these are
embodied in leaders’
and staff's day-to-day
interactions with
students. ’

XK Develop effectlve and consistent line management across the school and ensure this leads to
hlgh expectations of students. : ’

4.1.2 To putin place fi ndmgs of the review of the faculty Ieadershrp in the school and the faculty
structure
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| 4 1.3 Develop effectrve and consrstent line management across the school and ensure this leads to

high expectations of students

4.1.4 To ensure there are clear links to governors to support and challenge LT roles and
responsrbllmes

4.1.5 Ensure all stakeholders including governors, are aware of the vision and core values of the
school.

4.1.6 To develep the mental well-being of students in the schoo|.

1 4.1.7 To review and clarify roles and responsibilities in SEND area

4.1.8 Review and clarify roles and responsibilities in student welfare area

4.2 As aresult of the
work of leaders there
are better outcomes for
students which are
above expectations in
terms of progress.

4.2.1 To monitor the progress of Disadvantaged students and ensure that the achievement gap
closes. .

4.2.2 To monitor the progress of Higher Prior Attainers and ensure that outcomes overall are posmve
as measured by Progress 8.

4.3 Professional
development for
teachers and staff is
aligned with the

.| curriculum, and this

develops teachers’
content knowledge and
teaching content
knowledge over time,
so that they are able to
deliver better teaching

4.3.1 Develop the professronal practice of all staff through effective management of the Apprarsal
process and its outcomes.

for students.

4.3.2 Driving the Implementation of year3 _(year 5) ef the strategic plan for recruitment and retention.

4.4 Students benefit
from effective teaching
and consistent
expectations, wherever
they are in the school.

4.4.1 To develop the quality of education as defined by teaching and Iearnrng to ensure |t is
consistently high across the school.

4.5 Leaders seek to
engage parents and
their community
thoughtfully and
positively in a way that
supports students’

.| education.

4. 5 1 To develop the engagement of parents in the school beyond merely attendmg parents'
evening.

4.6 Leaders take into
account the workload
and well-being of staff,
while also developing
and strengthening the

" | quality of the workforce.

46.1 To develop the role of all leaders in the school so that they take on more responsibility for
improving staff welfare
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4.7 Leaders' and "
managers' have high.
ambitions for all
students, including
those who are harder to
reach. ensures that
practices such as ‘off-

.| rolling’ do not take
place and that the
school uses the pupil
premium effectively and
founded on good
evidence.

471 To monltor the starters and Ieavers to the school especially for students where parents/carers
" declare EHE

4.7.2 To effectively} use pupil premium funding to ensure high ambitions for students

4.8 Safeguarding is
effective.

4, 8 1 Ensure that Single Central Register is revrewed and.correct procedures in place for safer
recruitment. .

482 Updating on latest developments in making young people safe.

4.9 Leaders and those
responsible for
governance all
understand their
respective roles and
perform these in a way
that enhances the
effectiveness of the
school.

4.9.1 Developmg the role of the Governor through training and mentoring to ensure that alf dutres are
drscharged effectively taking into account the Nolan prrncrples for pubhc office.

4.10 The school is
financially viable
moving forward.

4.10.1 For all leaders, including Governors, to be involved in rlgorously |mplementmg and monitoring
of the budget cost reduction plan. .

.

*4.10.2 Ensure that all leaders are in\rolved in the monitoring of the budget sperrd against estimates. -.

4.10.3 Ensure that all leaders are involved in processes which lead to the setting of the budget for
2019-2020.

.Objectives

Actions, including CPD-

Intent'5.1 Relevance
of study programmes
to local & regional
needs

lntent 5.1.1

Create a more ambitious tutor programme for High Prior attainers who are grouped separately as
well as encouraglng scholarship through a mini lecture series.

Increase use of outside providers an ex student in aspirational roles as part of “Inspire to aspire.”

intent 5.1.2

Review KS5 Curriculum in light of school needs whilst being cost effective.
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Intent 5.2

t The curriculum is
coherently planned
and sequenced.
towards cumulatively

sufficient knowledge .

and skills for future
learning and -

Intent 5.2.1

To review curriculum map across all sub}ects' including course completion dates and coursework
completion to allow students to be fully prepared for examinations and to identify any pinch points

employment.
Intent 5.2.2
To consider the 'development of further links to local em’p|oyérs and to highlight to students the
employment opportunities and links to the subjects they are studying.

Intent 5.3 Intent 5.3.1

The school is
ambitious for all its
sixth-form students,
including those with
SEND and those who
have high needs. This
is reflected in the
curriculum.
The curriculum
remains ambitious
and is tailored, where
.necessary, to meet
individual needs.

To monitor individual progress of SEND students and disadvantaged students more rigorously
throughout the year and liaising with SEN to ensure staff are aware of students and appropriate
strategies to use .

Intent 5.4

The work that
teachers give to sixth-
form students is
demanding. It
ensures
that students build
knowledge and
acquire skills,
improving and

. extending -
what they already

- know and can do.

Intent 5.4.1

Teachers to provide further chéllenging work for students to do outside of lessons

1
v

Intent 5.5

Teachers encourage

“students to use
subject-specific,
professional and
technical vocabulary
well.

Intent 6.5.1.

Embed PiXl untock across the curricutum

Intent 5.5.2

Embed the wider reading programme.

Intent 5.6

Teaching to
remember long term
with fluency and
independence

intent 6.6.1

Aid students in developing study skills which embed long term learning
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Intent 5.7

Use of assessment .

Intent 5.7.1

Review collection of assessment data and how this can be used to better inform intervention »

Intent 5.8 Intent 5.8.1
Teaching :
environment & ° Continue to review use of superwsed study centre to ensure students are usrng this resource
resources effectrvely Improve use of learning zone for independent study
| Intent5.82
Staff set mdependent work for students with a focus on preparation tasks or flipped learnrng
Intent 6.9 Intent 5.8.1

National tests &
exams meet gov
expectations

Examrnatlon results are improved with a move towards a positive VA for A Level examinations-and
grade 3 ALPS

3

Intent 5.10

Readiness for next
stage

/!

“Intent 5.10

Students are given aspirations to achieve high grades in order to move onto the top unrversrtles or
Higher apprentrceshlps . . .

Intent 5.11

Intent 5.11
Atténdance & Year 13 attendance figures are improved in line with rest of school.
punctuality i :
Intent 5.12
Punctuality is closely monitored and persistent late students are monitored
Intent 5.12. 4 Intent 5.12
Careers and Students are'inspired to pursue challenging careers and take up opportunities to get experience
employment within chosen fields and more students gain top university places
-information and
guidance

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others

The academy trust is not acting as custodian for any other external body.

 Auditor

In so far as the Governors are aware: )
-+ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company s auditor is unaware and
« the Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to estabhsh that the auditor is aware of that mformatron

The trustees' report, lncorporatlng a strategic report was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as the‘
‘company directors, on 10 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr S J Fitz-Gerald

v

Appointed Governor / Chair of Governors
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - | | .
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Scope of responsibility

As Governors we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Blackfen School for Girls has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to-achieve business objectives, and can provrde -only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material mlsstatement or loss.

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to tte Head Teacher, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in

accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Blackfen

School for Girls and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of

Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in mternal control. . .

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report and in the
Statement of Governors' Responsibilities. The Board of Governors has formally met 8 times during the year.
Attendance durmg the year at meetings of the Board of Governors was as follows:

Governors - - ‘ - Meetings attended ‘Out of possible'
‘Mr W-Stone (Appointed Governor) 8
Mrs J Andrews (Appointed Governor) '

Mr S J Fitz-Gerald (Appointed Governor / Chair of Governors) *
Mrs C S Townsend (Appointed Governor / Vice Chair of Gov)*
Mr M Brown (Head Teacher & Accounting foicer) d '

" Mr T Perrin (Appointed Governor / Chair of Finance) *'

Ms J Phelps (Appointed Governor / Vice Chair of Governois)
- Mrs A Dhorajiwaia (Appointed Governor)

Mr R Shaw (Elected Staff Governor)

Mr L Thomas (Elected Parent Governor)*

Ms D Moore (Elected Parent Governor)

Mrs L Ashdown (Appointed Governor) '

Mrs L Twiner (Elected Parent Governor)*

Mrs L Watkins (Elected Parent Governor) *

Ms M Yianni (Elected Parent Governor) *

OO O WO N =N oMo o MW O W

Governance reviews:

The trust intends to conduct its next self-evaluation review of governance on-the 24" September 2020.

.
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The Finance and & Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Governing Body. Its purpose is to plan and
recommend budget for approval by the Full Governing Body. They obtain regular reports from the Responsible
Officer, Business Manager, Finance Manager and the Academy's Auditors. The Finance & Audit Committee has
formally met 6 times during the year. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governors ' Meetmgs attended Out of possible
~Mrs J Fitz-Gerald (Appointed Governor/Chalr of Governors) 6

Mrs C S Townsend (Appointed Governor)

Mr M Brown (Head Teacher & Accounting Officer)

Mr T Perrin (Appointed Governor/Chair of Finance) -
Mr L Thomas (Elected Parent Governor)

Mrs L Twiner (Elected Parent Governor)
Mrs L Watkins (Elected Parent Governor)
Ms M Yianni (Elected Parent Governor)

AW W hHAOOONO®
D OO

- Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Head Teacher has recponsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value
in the use of public resources. The accountlng officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting ofﬁcer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during-
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use
of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value
for money during the year by:

1 Staffing

As accounting officer, it is becoming more apparent that the continued increase in the staffing expenditure is having
a huge impact on the budget. It is becoming more challenging to keep this budget within our means. | acknowledge
the significant impact that being overstaffed can have on the budget and | aim to ensure that no more than 80% of
the budget is allocated to staffing. We were successful in meeting this aim again for 2019-2020. Weighed up
against this is the importance of recruiting a suitably qualified and skilled staff. Our rigorous recruitment processes
ensure this happens and we have a clear strategic plan in terms of the recruitment and retention of high quality
teaching staff. A key focus has been to appoint teaching staff in science and we have a strategic plan for this. We
continue to invest in staff and staff training to ensure that staff have future career opportunities in the school which
minimises staff turnover. There has been a particular emphasis on building leadership capacity in the school.

As accounting officer, | am fully aware of the need to be bearing down on costs and | acknowledge that forthcoming
budgets will continue to be “flat” while costs increase. As part of our budget cost reduction plan we will continue to
review how effectively we use staff in the school especially as there will be cost of living rises for all staff during the
" next year. Changes to our staffing structure will reflect this plan. Furthermore, we deal with vacancles as they arise,
by being creative and looking at the posmon and whether to replace like for like.
2 |T support contract
The outsourcing of the IT support contract continues to provide good value and has saved a significant amount in
staffing costs. A very competitive contract has been put in place for the next 2 years. The IT provision is a good
improvement on our previous provision. We continue to ensure that it prowdes value for money.
3 Energy efficiencies _
The new boilers were installed as a result of money received through '‘a CIF bid. We are startlng to see
the impact of these on energy conservation and cost saving. Our energy costs are higher than we would like. This
is partly due to the contracts that we are tied to. These have been evaluated and will cease at the end of their
contract time-frame. We have continued to review our existing costs and investigate how we can be more energy
efficient. We continue to look- at options for improved lighting that will ensure that the school is
conserving energy and, in turn, reducing costs.
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4 Financial processes
The school has a budget cost reduction group led by the Business Manager. This has met to look at processes and
to analyse areas to reduce costs. During the year, through the work of the Business Manager and the Finance
Manager, financial processes within the Academy have been streamlined to improve productivity and efficiency and
to reduce cost. Our internal controls are sound, fendering processes are agreed with the Governors and are
thorough and finances are regularly monitored by myself and governors. The Business Manager has scrutinised all
of our confracts and services. Some services have been renegotlated and thls has saved money. We continue to
look at ways to save money in this area. : .
§ Catering contract
The catering contract contintes to provide good value for the school. The contract has provided improved dlnmg .
and catering options for staff and students in the school. There has been some capital investment by the catering ,
- company. There has been significant.investment. in our 6"form cafeteria area. With increased uptake we
“are continue to see the benefits of the contract for the school. The tendering process took place for a new contract
during this year and the new contract, with the same company, provides a good service to users:
.6 Cleaning contract
The Business Manager worked with 6 other schools to tender for a new cleaning contract. The contract agreed has
provided an improved cleaning provision in the school at very little additional cost to the school. The new
contractors are a big improvement on previous years. They have provnded outstanding ‘service dunng a very
difficult penod
7 GDPR :
The school has a one-year contract with a GDPR provider in partnership with the other Penh|ll Academies Trust
schools. This has meant that this is outsourced rather than being a responsibility, hence a cost, in terms of salary of
a member of staff. It has provnded the school with good value for money and opportunities for training in this area.
8 Lettings
Unfonunately. due to the circumstances, there has been a reduction in income from lettings. This is somethirig that
we continue to evaluate in terms of costs and benefits. - The school continues to let out facilities throughout the
week and at weekends to maximise use and income. The governing body premises committee assesses the costs
of maintaining the site and openlng the site outside normal business hours. Lettings rates are very competitive in
the local area and we have had to increase our charges ona stepped basis in order to continue to ensure value for
money. .
9 Students and educational outcomes
The school is full in all year groups and is oversubscribed in-all year groups. We continue to push for increased
. numbers in'the 6" form. The school is a successful schoo! in the local area.
10 Collaboration :
. There are now 5§ members of the Penhill Academies Trust ‘The Trust includes 4 secondary schools and 1 primary
school. We are looking to expand this further during the coming year with a particular focus on more primary
partners. During 2019-2020 there was continued coliaborative work. A key aspect of this collaborative working is to
share some costs, hence be more efficient, in terms of potential staffing and purchasing.
11 CIF bids
The school was successful in gaining a CIF bid in 2018-2019. The money (£1.8 million) is to replace outdated and
outworn temporary teaching and learning accommodation with a new teaching and learning block. - The work will"
. enhance the opportunities in the school and, in the long run, wilt save costs as the new buildings will be more -
energy efficient and will not need huge and regular repair costs to keep them going. This work is due for completion
in 2020-2021.

The purpose of the system of internaf controf

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
. of effectiveness. The 'system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in Blackfen Schaol for Girls for the year ended 31 August 2020 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. :
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Capacity to handle risk

The board-of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board
of Governors' is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating -and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 August 2020 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Governors.

Tﬁe risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures |nclud|ng the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. -

In particular it includes:

o comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annuaI budget and periodic financial repons
" which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Governors;
"o regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expendlture programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital mvestment) guidelines;
‘delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
identification and management of risks.

Baxter & Co have confirmed that in accordance with the ethical standard, having concluded their engagement to
support the RO for 2019/20, they will no longer provide internal scrutiny services. 'The Trust will therefore be
implementing an alternative provider for 2020/21. .

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer the' Head Teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectlveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:
« the work of the responsible officer,
+ the work of the external auditor; :
< the financial management and governance self—assessment process,
+ the work of the executive managers within the Académy Trust who have responS|b|l|ty for the
development and malntenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting: officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the finance and audit commlttee and'a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in place. - .

Approved by order of the Board of Governors on 10 December 2020 and srgned on its behalf by

.........................................................................

MrS J FitzGerald S o . ' S . Mr M Brown
Appointed Governor / Chalr of Governors ' : Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of Blackfen School for Girls, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust .
Board of Governors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my

_congideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Board of Governors are able to |dent|fy any materlal irregular or improper

" use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the

Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, |mproprrely or funding non- compllance have beeh discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board ‘of Governors
and ESFA. .

Mr M Brown

Accounting Officer

10 December 2020
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The Governors (who act as trustees for Blackfen School for Girls and are also the directors of Blackfen School for
Girls for the purposes of- company law) are responsible for preparing the Governors' report and the Financial
Statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 published by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom ‘Accounting Standards (Unlted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) and applicable law and regulations. '

Company law requires the Governors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Governors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including rts income and expenditure, for that perrod

In preparing these Financial Statements, the Governors are.required to:

) select suitable accountmg policies and then apply them consrstently,
e  observe the methods and prmaples in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
' 2019 to 2020;
e .make judgements and accounting estlmates that are reasonable and prudent;
o state whether applicable UK Accountnng Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
: disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and

e preparte the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is |nappropnate to presume that the

charitable companv will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable-company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking’
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received -from ESFA/DE have been applled for.
the purposes intended. v

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and inte‘grity of the corporate and financial information included"
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors on 10 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

1

Mr S J Fitz-Gerald
Chair of Governors ;

’
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Opinion

We' have audited the Financial Statements of Blackfen School for Girls for the year ended 31 August 2020 which
comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
-has -been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United: Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2018 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. )

In our opinion the Financial Statements
- give a true and fair view of the state of the chantable companys affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its
" incoming resources and appltcatton of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then

ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and .

- have been prepared in accordance wuth the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audlt in accordance with International Standards on Audlttng (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and appllcable

the Flnanmal Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relatton to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report

to you where;

- the Governors' use of the going concern basxs of accountung in the preparation of the Financial Statements is
not appropriate; or .

- = the Governors have not dtsclosed in the Flnan0|al Statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at teast twelve months from the date when the Financial Statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The Governors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information |nc|uded in the annual
report other than the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the Financial
Statements does not cover the other information. and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audlt of the Fmanmal Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other. information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially ‘misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the Financial Statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BLACKFEN SCHOOL
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FOR. THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act.2006-
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
- the information given in the Governors' Report including the incorporated Strateglc Report for the fi nancral
' year for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements; and
- the Governors' report including the incorporated strateglc report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements. .
Matters on which we are required to report by exceptaon *

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Governors' Report, including the incorporated
Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the followrng matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been recelved
from branches not visited by us; or

- - the Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accountlng records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsrblhtres of Governors :
As explained more fully in the statement of Governors' responsibilities, the Governors are responsrble for the

preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such .

- internal control as the Governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Governors’are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to Ilqutdate the chantable company, or have no
reallstrc alternative but to do 0. .

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or'in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
mﬂuence the economic. demsmns of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's. webstte at: http IMww frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. Thls description forms part of our
audltor‘s report ‘ .

.26 -



BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BLACKFEN SCHooOL
FOR GIRLS (CONTINUED)

FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

‘Use of our report

This report is made solely to the.charitable company’s Members as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companles Act 2006: Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's’ Members' those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
charitable company and the charitable company's Members asa body, for our audlt work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

- David John Walsh FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
- For and on behalf of Baxter & Co
Statutory Auditor - 4
" Chartered Certified Accountants
Lynwood House
Crofton Road
Orpington
Kent -
BR6 8QE -

. Dated: 17 December 2020 ~ -
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR,GIRLS

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS AND THE EDUCATION AND
'SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 15 October 2012 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Blackfen School for Girls during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been’
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactlons conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to Blackfen School for Girls and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Blackfen School for Girls and ESFA those
matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do-.
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Blackfen School for Glrls and ESFA, for our work, for this
report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Blackfen School for Girls's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

_ The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Blackfen School for Girls's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 11 July 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1
September 2019, for ensuring-that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtdin limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come to
‘our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income_received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negatlve conclusion on
regulanty

A limited assurance engagément is more limited in. scope than a' reasonable 'assurance engagement ‘and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become-aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement mcludes examlnatlon on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulanty and propnety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw 1o our conclusion includes:

Review of payments to staff;

Review of payments to suppliers and other third parties;

Review of grant and other income streams;

Review of some key financial control procedures

Discussions with finance staff; .

Consideration of the record maintained by the Accounting Officer of the oversight they have exercised,
Consideration of the programme of internal scrutiny implemented by the Academy Trust in order to comply
with its obligations under 3.1 of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019, issued by the ESFA.
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Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attentlon which suggests that in all material respects the -
expenditure disbursed and.income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactlons do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Baxter & Co )

Independent Reporting Accountants
Chartered Certified Accountants
Lynwood House

Crofton Road -

Orpington

Kent

BR6 8QE

Dated: 17 December 2020

-29-



BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIV\IT IES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Total .

(2,745)

21,329 18,703

Unrestricted Restricted funds: ~ Tofal
funds  General Fixed asset 2020 2019

: Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
income and endowments from: h : . ‘
Donations and capital grants 4 - - 33 33 1,923 .

. Charitable activities: - R ) X :
- Funding for educational operations 5 - 83 8,230 - 8,313 7,945
Other trading activities ) : 6 .. 25 . - 25 40
Total S 108 8,230 33 8371 . - 9,908
. Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:
- Educational operations ] 8 . T 42 8,333 643 - 9,018 8,843
Total 7. 42 8,333 643 9,018 8,843
Net income/{expenditure) ‘ _ 66 (103) (610) (647) 1,065
Transfers between funds 17 (23) : (6) 29 » - -
Other recdgnlsed gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined . :
benefit pension schemes - 19 - - 164 - 164 (1,109)
Net movement in funds 43 55 " (581) (483) (44)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 76 (2,800) 21,910 " 19,186 19,230
Total funds carried forward * ‘ 119 19,186
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INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

: Restricted funds:

(2,800)

Comparative year information - Unrestricted , Total

: Year'ended 31 August 2019 ] ) funds General Fixed asset 2019

' = Notes | £'000 . £000 £'000 £'000 -

Income and endowments from: ‘ ‘ : ‘
Donations and capital grants R 3 - © 1,920 1,923
Charitable activities: . : :
- Funding for educatiqnal operations - .5 t 140 7,805 - . 7,945
Other trading activities ' ' 6 : 40 - - - 40
Total B ‘ - . 183 7,805 1920 9,908
Expenditure on:

" Charitable activities: ‘ .

" - Educational operations ' 8 . 107 8,090 646 8,843
Total o : o 107 8090 . 646 8,843
Net income/(expenditure) ‘ o . . 76 _ (285) . 1,274 1,065
Transfers between funds - 17 . 66 (66) -
Other recognised gains/(losses) - '

Actuarial-losses on defined benefit pension . '
schemes * . : ' 19 ~ - (1,109) - (1,109)

* Net movement in funds \ C : '76 ’ (1,328) 1,208 - (44)
Reconciliation of funds L
Total funds brought forward , B - (1,472) 20,702 19,230
Total funds carried forward - o A 76- 21,910 19,186
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' BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020
2629 _ 2019
Notes - £'000 - £'000 £000 £000
- Fixed assets , o -
" Tangible assets ' 12 . 20,574 S 20,103
Current assets . . T . .
Debtors - , 13 797 . .+ 1,854
Cash at bank and in hand : 982 . 635
. 1,779 2,489
Current liabilities . ’
Creditors: amounts falhng due within one , C
year - ' 14 (701) o (520)
Netcurrentassets o o 1,078 R 1,969
Total assets less current liabllities I 21,652 22,072 -
Creditors: amounts fallmg due after more . . :
than one year : 15 : (1) : Cot
Nét assets before defined benefit pension . o ' .
scheme liability . - 21,641 ' 22,072
Defined-benefit pension scheme liability 19 4 © (2938) : (2,886) .
Total net assets L 18,703 o 19,186
Funds of the Academy Trust: - . '
Restricted funds ) 17 - . :
- Fixed asset funds ) 21,329 21,910
- Restricted income funds _ . I 193, , - 86
- Pension reserve . i _ : (2,938) : (2,886)
Total restricted funds - S _ 18,584 19,110
Unrestricted income funds 17 119 ' . ) 76
Total funds . = ‘ . - 18,703 ' 19,186

-The Fmancnal Statements on pages 30 to 54 were approved by the Governors and authonsed for issue on 10
December 2020 and are signed on their behalf by: :

4L

Mr S J Fitz-Gerald IR
Chair of Governors ) ’
' Company Number 07974098
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'BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE- YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUS T 2020

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities '
Net cash provided by/(used in) operatmg

activities 20
Cash flows froﬁl'invesfing activities

Capital grants from DfE Group ) .

Capital furiding receivéd from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term loan

Net cash used.in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equuvalents in the
reporting perlod

Cash and cash equivalents af beginning of the year

Cash and cash eqdivalents at end of the year

\

. 2020
£000

" (553)

(i,11l;)

(12)

- £'000

2,026

(1,667)

(12)

347
635

982

2019 .
£000.,

1,770
150
(301)

£'000

(1,491)

1,619

128
507

635
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.1

1.2

13~

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accountrng pollcres adopted (Wthh have been applled consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their Financial Statements in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Governors assess whether the use of gorng concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the Financial Statements and have concluded that

. the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

As described in note 26, the Governors continue to adopt the going concern basrs of accounting in prepanng
the Fmancral Statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the recelpt is
probable and the amount can be measured refiably.

Grants ‘

Grants are included in the Stalement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of i |ncome
received for specific purposes but not. expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as

. deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before i income IS‘

received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full ih the Statement of Financial Activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the perioq is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised.in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent a.rhounts
of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entrtlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are

expended.

Donations , : : )
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where .
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the perrod it is recelvable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.
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1.5

Accounting policies

Donated goods, facilities and services .

Goods donatéd for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expécted
costs of sale. If'it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities'. Upon sale, the .value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other tra'ding‘activities’. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the Financial Statements
until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities..

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included.in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies. .

. Expendlture

Expenditure is recognlsed once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit toa
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic beneflts will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured refiably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support. costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one. activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a
basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs . are allocated on the basis of time spent and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

'Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charltable purposes and
includes costs of all fundralsmg activities events and non-charitable tradlng

Charitable acttvmes
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, |nc|ud|ng support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities. .

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

‘Assets costing £5,000 or more per item (or less if they form part of a: larger purchase or project where the

fotal cost exceeds £25 000) are capitalised as tangible frxed assets and are carried at cost, net of

“ depreciation and any provision for lmpa|rment

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired / funded
by other income, the fixed asset fund is also credited. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly ~
to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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1.7 :
- Rentals payable under operatlng leases are charged against income on a straight-line basis over the penod

1.8

Accohnting policies

- Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land at rates calculated to write off

the cost of each asset on a stralght -line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2% - 5% Straight Line

Furniture and-equipment 20% Straight Line

Computer equipment ' : 33.33% Straight Line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts- are-recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities.

Liabilities ' .
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obllgatlon at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it

“is probable that a transfer of econamic benefit will be required in settlement, and the-amount of the settlement

can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assets

of the lease.

Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets )
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised

* cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

1.9

1.10

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities '
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

- Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and .

there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation : . .

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act '
2010 and therefore it: meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is. potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporatton Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 to the extent that such income or gains are applied excluswely to
charitable purposes. .

Pensnons benefits - :

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scherme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are deflned benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust.
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" Accounting policies

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level

- percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government

Actuary based on gquadrennial valuations using.a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is.
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contnbutlons are recognlsed in the

. period to which they relate.

1.1

112

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are heid separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet
date. The amounts charged to-net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of -
scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as-part of staff costs
as incurred. Net.interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of
financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the
scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the pericd by -
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme
assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources whlch may be-used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Governors. :

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by .
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a.specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise. all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Agency Arrangement

. The Financial Statements of the- Academy Trust which is a public beneflt entity under FRS 102, have been

prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable

.in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their Financial Statements in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)),- the Academies Accounts D|rechon 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006. .

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgéménts are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that -are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions ] :

The Academy Trust makes ‘estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumiptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Ay
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2 Critical accounting estimates and areas ofjudgemeht

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defmed benefit liability. depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in -
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
-which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll

forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 -

has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between thie
figures. derived: from the roll forward approach and a fuII actuarial valuatlon would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

Cntlcal areas of |udgement
In preparing these Financial Statements, the Governors have not needed to exercise any subjective
judgements that would be critical to the Academy Trust's Financial Statements. .

3 ‘Gen'eral Annual Grant (GAG)

" Under the funding agreement with ‘the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was subject to limits at 31
August 2020 on the amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next. An amount equal
to 12% of GAG could be carried forward, of which up to 2% could be used for general recurrent purposes,
with any balance being available for premlses/capltal purposes.

The Academy Trust has not exceeded these Iimits'during the year ended 31 August 2020.

4 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted - Restricted. Total © Total

funds funds - 2020 2019

£'000 . £'000 £'000 - - £000

Capital grants . : . - . 33 33 1,920
_ Other donations - .- ‘ - _ - - 3
- 33 33 . - 1,923

morzes 0 emm——— == ==
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5 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations-

Unrestricted

funds
£'000
DfE / ESFA grants S
General annual grant (GAG) -
- Other DfE group grants _ . ‘ -
~J . . ————
Other government grarits ] : .
SEN o } ' -
Other LA Grants - _ .
Exceptional government fundirig .
. Coronavirus Job Retention-Scheme grant. -
Other funding ~ | ‘
Catering income » 42
Voluntary funds . ‘ -
Other incoming resources . .4
83
. Total funding . . ‘ 83

6 Other trading activities .
- ’ . . “Unrestricted
funds
£'000

Hire of facilities : - 25 -

7 Expenditure

Staff costs Premises
£'000 £'000

Academy's educational operations v .
- Direct costs - ) 5,844 514
- Allocated support costs o - 1,005 693
6,849 - 1,207

Restricted '

funds
£'000

7170

648

7,818
114
86

42

242

170

170

8,230 .

Restricted
funds
£'000

Non-pay expenditure

Other
£000

488
474

962

Total
2020
£'000

7,170
648

7,818

114
86

42

242

- 42
170
41

253

8313

Total
2020
£'000

25

Total
- 2020

£'000

6,846
2,172

9,018

Total
2019
£'000

" 7,008

322

7,330

105
119

224

122
247
22

. 391

7,945

Total
2019

£'000

40

" Total
2019 -

£'000

6,526

2,317

8,843
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' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

7 Expenditure

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: ' o 2020 2019
o , ' : £000- £000
Fees payable to auditor for: < .
- - Audit co ] . o : 9 8’
- Other services : ‘ . ) 21 22
" Operating lease rentals , 4 : R ‘ 45 45
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets : o h 643 .+ 646

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability u o 50 38

Included within expenditure are the following transactions: . ' o .
) ' : 2020

Gifts made by the Academy Trust - tetal S - 711

. i N . ¢ -
Clarification - While the majority of disclosure in these acecounts are rounded to £'000, disclosure of gifts and
unrecoverable debts are not. The value of gifts for the year is £711 (and not £711k).
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8 Ch’aritaple activities

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds - funds 2020 2019
. - £000 £000 - £'000 ‘£'000
Direct costs . o » " _
Educational operations . _ . .- 6,846 6,846 . 6,526
‘Support costs S : ~ , :
Educational operations . - . 42 2,130 2172 2,317
42 8,976 9,018 8,843 -
Analysis of costs . ‘ ) - A E 2020 2019
‘ . ’ " £'000 £'000
Direct costs - . S
Teaching and educational support staff costs B } _ S 5,844 5,426
Staff development . : ' 19 20
Depreciation- : o L o 514 CL817
Educational supplies and services 103 110
Examination fees - v ' . 143 160
Educational consultancy : : ‘66 72
Other direct costs : ‘ : 157 221
6,846 - 6,526
Support costs _ . _ . ; :
Support staff costs . : - 839 807
Defined benefit pension scheme - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment) . - , 166 266
Depreciation ’ ' . . . 129 © 129
Technology costs : ‘ T '161 ) 168
Maintenance of premises and equipment . . . 190 197
Cleaning B ’ 138 122
Energy costs ‘ . 121~ 124
Rent, rates and other occupancy costs o ’, . 81 ’ 91
Insurance . C ' _ : , 34 42 .
Security and transport - T 1 1
Catering : : - - 77 . 135
Defined benefit pension scheme - finance costs (FRS102 adjust'm‘ent) ] . <50 ' 38
Other support costs . ' ' . 152 163 -
Governance costs ) ' : : .33 34
2172 2,317
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.9 Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were: . . 4
2020 - 2019
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries o : o 4,924 4,752
Social securily costs i . ' o 456 450
Pension costs- : ) 1,095 © 816
Defined. benefrt pension scheme staff costs (FRS1 02 adjustment) C 166 266
" Staff costs - employees ' . ' _ ] . 6,641 6,284
. Agency staff costs » o o 186 215
-Staff restructuring costs ' . 22 ‘ -
6,849 - 6,499 .
. Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Severance payments »A - _ 22 -

Non statutorylnon -contractual staff severance payments
Included in staff restructurmg costs is a single, non statutory/non- contractual severance payment of £13k -

(2019: £nil).
. ‘ Staff numbers
~The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust durrng the year was as follows: ]
2020 . - 2019
Number Number
Teachers | - , . S ' 91 . 82
Administration and support, : ; '_ . 66 _ - 69
Management . B ' I 9 -9
166 ) 160
- The number of persons employed, expressed asa frrll time equivalent, was as follows: g .
’ 2020 © - 2019
Number . .Number.
-Teachers - ' , ‘ L _ ' 84 73
Administration and support : . . 59 " .60
Management . .. o 9

152 142
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9

Staff -
Higher paid staff :
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludmg employer penSIon costs) exceeded £60,000
" was:
’ 2020 2019
Number Number
- £60,000 - £70,000 5 5
£70,001 - £80,000 ) 3 3
£110,001 - £120,000 . ’ 1 1

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Governors and the senior management
team as listed on ‘page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their serwces to .

"~ the Academy Trust was £1 ,056, 269 (2019: £921,187).

10

Governors' remuneratlon and expenses -

One or more of the Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an
employment with the Academy Trust.. The Head Teacher and other Staff Governors only receive
remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of Head Teacher and staff members
under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of their services as Governors.

The value of Governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Mr M Brown (Head Teacher):
e Remuneration: £115,000 - £120,000 (2019: £110,000 - £115,000)
e  Employer's pension contributions: £25,000 - £30,000 (2019:-£15,000 - £20,000)

. Ms K Brewer (Staff Governor):

e  Remuneration: £65,000 - £70,000 (2019 £65,000 - £70,000)
o  Employer's pension contributions: £15,000 - £20,000 (2019: £10,000 - £15 000)

Mr R Shaw (Staff Govemor)
¢ Remuneration; £45,000 - £50, 000 (2019: £45,000 - £50,000)
. Employer's pension contributions: £10,000 - £15,000 (2019: £5,000 - £10,000)

Ms V Smith (Staff Governor - from 26/11/2019): .
¢ Remuneration; £35,000 - £40,000 (2019: not appointed)
. Employer's pension contributions: £5,000 - £10,000 (2019: not appointed)

During the year, expenses totalling £25 (2019: £597) were reimbursed or paid directly to 1 Governor (2019: &
Governors) in respect of expenses incurred in performing the duties of employment

Other related party transactions involving the Governors are set out within the related parties note.
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1

12

.Insurance for Governors and officers

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Acédemy Trust has purchased insurance to protect

‘Governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on

Academy Trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on' any one claim and the cost for
the year ended 31 August 2020 was included within the total insurance cost at £382 (2019: £317).

Tangible fixed assets . )
: - Leasehold  Furniture Computer " Total |

. land and and equipment
bulidings equipment .
£000 £'000 £000 - £'000
" Cost ) : . ) : : o
" At1 September 2019 . : 24,669 100 : 102 -+ 24,871
Additions . 1,108 - 6 1,114
At 31 August 2020 _ 25,777 100 108 . 25985
Depreciation , o . : , -
At 1 September 2019 . 4579 91 98 . 4,768
Charge-for the year ) 634 - 4 5 643 -
| AC31 August 2020 : 5213 95 103 . 5411
- Netbook value o A
At 31 August 2020 : , 20,564 5 5 20,574
At31August2019 S ‘ 20,090 9 4 20,103

13

Debtors

Leasehold Land is |ncluded at a nominal value of £1 reflecting legal restncuons over how the land may be
used.. .

2020 : 2019

£'000 £'000

* Trade debtors § : ‘ ‘ ' - ‘ S 2 12
. VAT recoverable - o ; : ‘ 40 .26
Other debtors i o S : e 7
Prepayments and accrued income ) 755 1,808
797 1,854
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14. . Creditoré: amounts falling due within one 'y'ear

‘Loans
- Trade creditors
Other taxation and social secunty
ESFA ¢reditors
Other creditors : . N
Accruals and deferred income ’

15 Creditors: amounts falling dué after more than one year
Salix loans

Analysis of loans -

Wholly repayable within five yearé
* Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above
Loan maturity

Debt due in one year or less
Due in more than two years but not more than five years

2020
£'000

122
23

121
431

701

2020

£'000

-1

2020
£'000

11

34

=

2019 .
£'000

23
61
125
23
101"
187

| 520

- 2019

£'000 -

2019
£000 -

g
(23)

23

23

Upon conversion the academy inherited a Salix loan under a government sponsored scheme providing
finance loans for the purpose of purchasmg energy eff cient equipment. This was satisfied in the year with

the LA confirming no liability.

A subsequent energy saving Salix loan was entered into during the year as part of a capital pro;ect The loan

amount was £11k. -

16 Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

2020
£'000

39

2019

_ £000

124
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16 Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2019 | . . 124 v 94

Released from previous years . ' . (124) ‘ (94)
Resources deferred in the year . . ‘ . .- 39 124
Deferred income at 31 August 2020 ‘ o » .39 124

Deferred income of £39k (2019: £124k) consists of £8k (2019 "£89k) of trip income, £Nil (2019: £27k) of
Devolved Formula Capital fundmg and £31k (2019 £8k) of other grant funding.

17  Funds o :
Balance at : Gains, Balance at :
1 September . losses and 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure  transfers © . 2020
. ' £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds T ' .
General Annual Grant (GAG) ' 40 7,170 (7,066) © 138
Other DfE / ESFA grants , - 488 " (488) - -
Pupil premium o coa 160 (160) - .
Other government grants - 242 (242) : . - -
Other restricted funds- 46 170 - (1e1) - 55
Pension reserve ' (2,886) - (216) _ 164 - (2,938) -
. (2,800) 8,230 " (8,333) 158 (2,745)
Restricted fixed asset funds : S .
Transfer on conversion . 19,218 - (592) - 18,626
DfE group capital grants 2,710 33 (46) - 2,697
Capital expenditure from GAG . - :
and other funds o . (18) - (5) 29 6
' 21,810 3. (643) 29 21,320
. Total restricted funds 49110 - . 8263 (8.976) 187 18,584
Unrestricted funds . : .
General funds o .76 ‘ 108 (42) (23) 119 -
Total funds . B 19,186 - 8,371 ' (9,018) 164 18,703
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17

Funds

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be épplied are as foliows:
The Restricted General Funds are used to fund the general operating costs of the Academy. .
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of Slate, the Academy Trust was subject to a limit on the

amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020. Note 3 confirms that the limit was not
exceeded. : : .

" The Restricted LGPS Fund represents the Academy’s share of the LGPS Pension Fund deficit. -

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund reb{esents investment in fixed asseté, net of related depreciatioﬁ. Unspent -
capital grants are also held in this fund and their use is restricted to the capital projects for which the grant
was paid. The fund also includes a deduction in respect of outstanding government capital loan balance.

: . - \
Unrestricted Funds represent balances held at period end that can be ‘applied at the discretion of the
Governors, to support any of the Academy’s charitable purposes.
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17  Funds |

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at

1 September )
T 2018  Income
S : £000 £'000
"Restricted general funds : . .
General Annual Grant (GAG) } (18) 7,008
Other DfE / ESFA grants - 142
Pupll premium ' ) ‘ - , 180
Other government grants : - 224
. Other restncted funds : 19 . 251
Pension reserve (1,473) -
(1472) - 7,805
Restricted fixed asset funds - :
Transfer on conversion 19,818 : -
.DfE group capital grants o " 899 1,920
Capital expenditure from GAG '
and other funds : (15) -
20,702 1,920
Total restricted funds 19,230 9,725
Unrestricted funds ‘ .
General funds o : - 183
Total funds 19,230 9,908 °
18  Analysis of net assets betwégn funds
i : ' : Unrestricted
Funds
A . : £'000
Fund halances at 31 August 2020 are .
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets T
Current assets . 119
Creditors falling due within one year -
Creditors falling due after one yeér -
Defined benefit pension liability -
" Total net assets . 119

Expenditure

£'000

(6,950)
(142)
- (180)
(224)

(290) -
(304).

(8,090)

© (600)

43)

©)

(646)

* (8,736)

©(107)

(8,843)

Gains,
losses and
. transfers

£000

" 66
(1,109)

(1,043)

- (1,109) -

Restricted funds:.

General
£'000

894 -

(701)

(2.935)

(2,745)

Fixed asset

£'000
20,574
© 766

) (11-)

21,329

‘Balance at

31 August
2019
£'000

40

. 46
(2,886)

——

(2,800)

19,218
2.710

- (18)

21,810

19,110

76

19,186

- Total .
" Funds ~
£'000

20,574
1,779 -
(701)
an,

£ (2,938)

18,703

.48



BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARENDE,D 31 AUGUST 2020

]

18

19

Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted i Restricted funds: Total

Funds. ©=  General Fixed asset ~ Funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 . £000

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are o :

- ‘represented by: : :
Tangible fixed assets : . - . 20,103 - 20,103
. Current assets . ' 760 583 1.830 - 2,489
Creditors falling.due within one year ' - (497) (23) . (520)
Defined benefit pension liability . , - (2,886) - © (2,886)
Total netassets _ ‘ 76 (2,800) . 21,910 19,186

Pension and similar obligations

- The kAcademy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Schene
‘England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme

(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by the London Borough of Bexley. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

TheA pension éosts are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS related to the -
period ended 31 March 2016.

. Contnbutlons ‘amounting to £116k (2019 £101 k) were payable to the- schemes at 31 August 2020 and are

included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme -

Introduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contnbutory, defined benefit scheme governed by the .
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to.which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension

‘benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme :

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarlal review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 pubtished
by HM Treasury.. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with
the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Dlrectlons 2014. The valuation report was -
published by the Department for Educatlon on 5 March 2019.
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19

Pension and similar obligations :

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: k
. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (rncludmg a 0. 08% employer
. administration charge);

e  total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation-date) of £196,100 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 million;

. an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensronable pay; and .

. the assumed: real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices. The rate of real earnrngs growth is
assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nomrnal rate of return is 4.45%. :

Scheme Changes ‘

In December 2018, the Court of Appeal held that transitional protection provisions contained in the reformed
judicial and firefighter pension schemes, introduced as part of public service pension reforms in 2015, gave
rise to direct age discrimination and were therefore unlawful. The Supreme Cour, in a decision made in June
20189, have rejected the Government's application for permission to appeal the Court of Appeal's ruling. The
case will now be referred to an Employment Tribunal for a decision regarding the remedy which will need to
be offered to those members of the two schemes who were subject of lhe age drscrlmmatlon

HM Treasury are -clear that the ruling has implications for the other public. service schemes, including the
Teachers' Pension Scheme. Those implications are currently being considered and any impact on scheme
costs is expected to be looked at within the next scheme valuatron which is currently scheduled to be based
on April 2020 data and implemented in April 2023. . .

The employers pension costs pard to the TPS in the penod amounted to £856k (2019 £587k)

A copy of the valuation report and supportlng documentation is on the Teachers' Pensrons website.

Under the deﬁnitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. “The

_Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.

The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held In separate trustee-administered.
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 16.48%
for employers and 5.5% to 12 5% for employees »

Parliament has agreed, at'the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of Academy Trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

Total contributions made ‘ _ ‘ B 2020 2019

. ‘ ’ : £000 . £000
Employer‘s contributions } - 239 3 229
Employees' contributions o : ' 59 . . 61
Total contributions ‘ ‘ o . " 208 290
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19  Pension énd similar obligations

Principal actuarial assumptions- ' e '. 2020 2019
: ' % %

 Rate ‘of increase in salaries _ 3.90 h 3.60
Rate of i increase for pensions in paymentllnﬂatlon 2.50 ' 2.20
Discount rate for scheme Ilab|I|t|es L » ' 180 1.80

" ‘Rate of CPI Inflation 2.40 2.10

_—— . e

“The current mortality assumptlons mclude sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates The
assumed life expectatlons on retirement age 65 are: .

2020 2019
. _ Years Years

Retiring today : '
-Males - : ' ' 22.40° 2320
- Females - . ' . ’ ) 25.10° 26.20
Retiring in 20 years : . )
- Males : : " ©24.00 25.40
- Females ' . : C 2710 2850
Scheme liabilitieé would have been affected by changes in aséumbtions as follows:

2020 2019
Discount rate + 0.1% ‘ c 7,531 7,035
Mortality assumption + 1 year ' : o . 7,907 7,320
CPirate + 0.1% o ) : . © 7,841 . 7,345
Pay growth +0.1% ' o - - 7,703 7214
Defined benefit pension scheme net liability -
Scheme assets - L : 4,746 4,302
Scheme obligations . : ) ' (7,684) - (7,188)
Net liability - ‘ _ - g (2,938)  (2,886)

e . ——
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19  Pension and similar obligations

' The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme

. Equities )
Government Bonds
Other Bonds

- Cash/Liquidity
Property
Other assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £158,000 (2019: £350,000).

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operating charge
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations ’

At 1 September 2019
Current service cost -
Interest cost
Employee contributions
Actuarial loss.

Benefits paid

Past service cost

At 31 August 2020

2020
Fair value
£'000

2,372
570
807

47

. 475

475

4,746

2020
£'000

387
18
(78)

128 .

455

2019
Fair value
" £'000

1,993
460

. 486
90
430
843

4,302

»

2019
- £'000

324
171 -
(107)
145

533

2020
£000

7,188
377
128

. 59
132
(218)

- 18

7,684

————m
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19 Pénsion and similar obligations

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2019
Interest income -
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2020

20 Reconclllatuon of net (expendlture)lmcome to net cash flow from operating activities

Net (expendlture)/mcome for the reportmg period (as per the statement of

fi nancnal actnvmes)

Adjusted for;
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable -

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
- Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

Increase in creditors

Net cash provided byl(usedA in) operating activities
21 Analysis of changes in net funds
-Cash

Loans fallmg due within one year
Loans falling due after more than one year

1 September
2019

£000

635
@3)

612

2020
£000

(647)

(33)
166
50
643
1,643
204

2,026

Cash ﬂowé

'£'000

347
23

(11)

359

12020
£'000

4,302
364
239

59
(218),

4,746

2019
£'000

1,065,

(1,920).
266
38

646 .

(1,681)
95

(1,491)

31 August
2020

£'000 -
982

(i{y

971 .
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22

23

24

25

26

Commitments under operating leases

At 31 August 2020 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non -cancellable
operatmg leases was:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Amounts due within one year 4 ’ ' ‘ 37 ' 40
Amounts due in two and five years - ' s . 74 .26
111 ' - 66 -
Capital commitments - -
i ' 2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the Financial Statements 716 1,851

At 31 August 2020, the academy was committed to the completion of the following capital projects:

- Replacement teaching accommodation. Project costs are expected to be £1,856k. Costs‘ incurred to date
were £1,143k (2019: £92k), with estimated future costs of £713k (2019: £1,764k).

- Main block boiler / plant room. Project costs are expected to be £367k. Costs incurred to date were £343k
(2019: £283k), with estimated future costs of £1k (2019: £84k). An underspend of £23k has been reported

- Technology boiler and maths boiler. Prolect costs are expected to be £201k Costs lncurred to date were
£198k (2019: £198k), wrth estimated future costs of £3k (2019 £3k). .

Related party transactions

No related party transactions took place in the period of account other than certaln Governors' remuneration
and expenses already disclosed in note 10.

Members' liability.
. ' Lo
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of

. it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
" such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she

ceases to be a member.
Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2020 the trust had unspent bursary funding brought forward of £22,990 (2019:
£20,648), received £22.902 (2019: £22,148) and disbursed £28,280 (2019: £17,602) from the fund. An
administration charge of £Nil (2019: '£2,204) was made leaving an amount of £17,612 -(2019: £22,990)
included within creditors: amounts falling due in less than one year, relating to undrstnbuted funds that are
repayable tothe ESFA. .
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